
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Cabinet Member for Place & Local Plan Decision Day 
 

Date and Time 
 

Wednesday, 18th June, 2025 at 2.00 pm. 

Venue 
 
 

Walton Suite, Guildhall, Winchester and streamed live on 
YouTube at www.youtube.com/winchestercc 

Note: This decision day is being held in person at the location specified above.  
 Members of the public should note that the meeting will be streamed live to the 
council’s YouTube channel (www.youtube.com/winchestercc)  
 
A limited number of seats will be made available at the above named location 
however attendance must be notified to the council at least 3 working days before 
the decision day.  Please note that priority will be given to those wishing to attend 
and address the decision day over those wishing to attend and observe. 
 

AGENDA 
 

PROCEDURAL ITEMS  

1.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Councillors or Officers in matters 

to be discussed. 
 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs), other registerable interests (ORIs) and non-
registerable interests (NRIs) in accordance with the Council’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS  

2.   Public Participation  
 – to note the names of members of the public wishing to speak on items for 

decision  
Note: members of the public wishing to speak about a particular agenda 
item are required to register three working days in advance if they wish to 
speak at a Cabinet Member Decision Day.   
 

Public Document Pack



  

Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at decision days 
on a specific item due for decision, provided they have registered to speak 
three clear working days in advance.  Please contact Democratic Services 
by 5pm on Thursday, 12 June 2025 via democracy@winchester.gov.uk or 
(01962) 848 264 to register to speak and for further details. 
 

 

3.   Visiting Councillors Representation  
 To note any request from visiting councillors to make representations on an 

item for decision. 
Note: Councillors wishing to speak about a particular agenda item are 
required to register three working days in advance if they wish to speak at a 
Cabinet Member Decision Day.  Councillors will normally be invited by the 
Chairman to speak during the appropriate item (after the Cabinet Member’s 
introduction (and any comments from the leading officer) and any public 
participation). 
 

4.   Local Enforcement Plan - 2025 (DD86) (Pages 5 - 48) 
 

 
Laura Taylor 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

 

All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes 
are available to view and download from the Council’s Website 
and are also open to inspection at the offices of the council.  As 
part of our drive to minimise our use of paper we do not provide 
paper copies of the full agenda pack at meetings. We do however, 
provide a number of copies of the agenda front sheet at the 
meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this code 
enables members of the public to easily access all of the meeting 
papers on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s 
camera or QR code App over the QR Code so that it's clearly 
visible within your screen and you will be redirected to the agenda 
pack. 

 

 
10 June 2025 
 
Agenda Contact: Claire Buchanan, Senior Democratic Services Officer  Email: 
cbuchanan@winchester.gov.uk  01962 848 438 
 
 
 
 

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
Cabinet Member for Place & Local Plan Decision Day  – Included within the 
Council’s Constitution (Part 3, Section 2)  
 
Public Participation 
Representations will be limited to a maximum of 3 minutes, subject to a maximum 15 
minutes set aside for all questions and answers.. 
To reserve your place to speak, you are asked to register with Democratic 
Services three clear working days prior to the decision day – please see public 
participation agenda item above for further details. People will be invited to speak in 
the order that they have registered, subject to the maximum time period allowed for 
speaking not being exceeded. Public Participation is at the Chairperson’s discretion. 
 
Filming and Broadcast Notification 
This decision day will be recorded and broadcast live from the Council’s YouTube 
channel. The decision day may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and 
members of the public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules 
within the Council's Constitution for further information, which is available to view on 
the Council’s website. Please note that the video recording is subtitled, but you may 
have to enable your device to see them (advice on how to do this is on the meeting 
page). 
 
Disabled Access 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 

DD86 
 

 
DECISION TAKER: Cabinet Member for Place and Local Plan, Councillor Jackie 
Porter 

REPORT TITLE: LOCAL ENFORCEMENT PLAN – 2025 
 
18 JUNE 2025 

Contact Officer:  Julie Pinnock    Tel No: 01962 848439 Email 
jpinnock@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL (OUTSIDE SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK) 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The Local Enforcement Plan (LEP) describes how the planning enforcement service 
will direct its resources to deal with alleged breaches of planning control.   

The LEP sets out the national legislative framework within which Planning 
Enforcement must operate, relationship with other regulatory bodies, our operating 
principles, how to report an alleged breach of planning control and how we will deal 
with those establishing 2 priorities.  It also sets out those matters we will not 
investigate and sets out how decisions are made on which cases to pursue and our 
approach to pro-active monitoring. 

The LEP has been through extensive consultation including a series of workshops 
with volunteer Parish Councils as well as a 6 week period of consultation between 5th 
February 2025 and 20th March 2025.  The consultation received 42 responses and 
where practical suggestions have been incorporated into the final LEP. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Cabinet Member for Place and Local Plan: 

1. Adopts the Local Enforcement Plan (2025) as set out in Appendix 1 of this 

report; 

2. Delegates any minor typographical errors and updates to national 

legislation/guidance to the Corporate Head of Planning and Regulatory 

Services to make to the document in consultation with the Cabinet Member 

for Place and Local Plan. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 Greener Faster 

1.2 The LEP emphasizes key principles and priorities, such as the protection of 
nature conservation areas, including protected trees. It integrates policy-
driven planning to ensure that developments preserve and enhance 
biodiversity. 

1.3 Thriving Places 

1.4 The LEP emphasises collaborative efforts with internal and external teams 
and organisations to ensure remedial matters are sensitive to the character of 
the area. The LEP highlights the use of legislative powers to guide officers 
and the public in addressing issues of nuisance, such as fly-tipping and waste 
dumping.  

1.5 Healthy Communities 

1.6 The LEP promotes active engagement with local parishes and members of 
the public to protect and preserve their environment and uphold their 
communities. 

1.7 Good Homes for All 

1.8 A key element of the Plan is to ensure that developments within the district 
adhere to National Guidance, including the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The Plan aims to regularize and ensure compliance with 
policy standards, encompassing energy efficiency and safety protocols. 

1.9 Efficient and Effective 

1.10 The LEP outlines clear communication strategies and public engagement, 
informing readers about what to expect after reporting a suspected planning 
breach. It provides detailed information on the internal monitoring and review 
of cases by Team Leaders, as well as the communication of relevant 
information to local parishes. 

1.11 Listening and Learning 

1.12 The review of the LEP was conducted collaboratively through workshops with 
local parish members and a public consultation. Though public engagement, 
feedback has been carefully considered, and the LEP has been adjusted 
accordingly. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 The LEP ensures that Council resources are directed to the breaches causing 
the most planning harm by establishing a protocol to tackling the most harmful 

Page 6



 

breaches.  Resources are principally existing staff in the planning 
enforcement team and legal resources.     

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 National legislation in NPPF and the courts establish the framework within 
which the planning enforcement service operates.  The LEP plan for 
Winchester directs how the Council will use its resource to tackle the 
breaches that generate the most planning harm. 

3.2 Section 171A of The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 establishes what a 
breach of planning controls is and the powers the Council has to deal these.  
The Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 made some changes to 
strengthen enforcement powers which includes changes to the timeframe for 
taking action, increasing the time for 4 years to 10 years (after which time a 
breach becomes immune from enforcement action). 

3.3 When serving an enforcement notice, temporary/stop notices or taking action 
in the courts the Councils legal team support decision making and provide 
advice on the most appropriate course of action having regard to the public 
interest test. 

3.4 The provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights, such as Article 
1 of the First Protocol, Article 8 and Article 14, are also relevant when 
considering enforcement action. 

4 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

4.1 The review of the LEP included two workshops held on 2nd November 2023 
and 5th December 2024, chaired by Cllr Jackie Porter, Cabinet Member for 
Place and Local Plan with the Service Lead: Built Environment who is 
responsible for the enforcement service.  Enforcement Officers also 
participated and informed the workshops. 

4.2 With a strong focus on public engagement, the workshops invited local parish 
members to share and discuss necessary changes and recommendations. 
Those that participated in one or both workshops are: 

• Councillor Loraine Rappe, Wickham Parish Council Member 

• Councillor Sue Wood, Sparsholt Parish Council Chair 

• Councillor Eric Bodger, Curdridge Parish Council Member 

• Councillor Maggie Hill, Colden Common Parish Council Member 

• Councillor Paula Langford-Smith, Parish Councillor for Denmead 

• Councillor Kevin Andreoli, Denmead Parish Council Member 

• Councillor Francesca Byrne, Shedfield Parish Council 

Page 7

https://www.echr.coe.int/european-convention-on-human-rights


 

• Councillor Margaret Jones, Shedfield Parish Council 

• Ailsa Duckworth, Clerk - Shedfield Parish Council 

• Councillor Carolyne Trew, Boarhunt Parish Council 

• Councillor Timothy Hunt, Compton and Shawford Parish Council Member 

• Councillor John Godbold, Badger Farm Parish Council  

• Councillor Rona Blundell, Olivers Battery Parish Council 

• Brendan Gibbs, Clerk - Olivers Battery Parish Council 

• Councillor Ian Herring, Otterbourne Parish Council Member 

4.3 These suggestions were reviewed and implemented where appropriate and 
then reassessed in a follow-up workshop. 

4.4 The revised document was subsequently subjected to a public consultation, 
inviting feedback from statutory consultees, local parishes, and ward 
members, and publicized on the WCC website.  This consultation ran for 6 
weeks between 5th February 2025 and 20th March 2025. 

4.5 The consultation received 40 responses with 3 of those from officers within 
the Enforcement Team.  The main themes of that arose were comments on 
the format and simplifying the text so it is more concise and clearer in its 
wording. Many of the comments were about the service itself, the need to 
enact the LEP faster and with more resource or not agreeing with the 
legislative processes themselves. Overall, the format, communication strategy 
and priorities were understood with a suggestion to improve these areas and 
to raise the priority of a breach where health is impacted being carried forward 
into the actions for the LEP document. 

4.6 Comments and suggestions from the consultation have been consolidated 
into Appendix 1 and are being carried forward when this complies with 
national legislation and is appropriate and proportionate.   

5 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

5.1 The LEP is dedicated to safeguarding nature conservation areas, including 
protected trees and actively promotes nature's recovery through habitat 
restoration, sustainable land use practices, and initiatives aimed at bolstering 
the resilience of local ecosystems. 

5.2 Through collaboration with the Natural Environment Team and through 
integrating policy-driven planning, it ensures that developments not only 
preserve but also enhance biodiversity. 

5.3 The LEP leverages legislative powers, to guide officers and the public in 
tackling the most harmful environmental concerns, whilst working alongside 

Page 8



 

Enforcement protocols set by Hampshire County Council for waste 
management. 

6 PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY  

6.1 The adoption of an updated LEP is consistent with the Council’s Equality Policy. 

7 RISK MANAGEMENT  

7.1 Having an adopted LEP ensures the Council has a local policy which 
establishes how alleged breaches of planning control will be managed.  The 
current LEP was adopted in January 2020 National legislation recommends 
LEPs are reviewed every 2 years.  There are no risks in adopting this 
reviewed LEP. 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Financial Exposure N/A N/A 

Exposure to challenge An up to date adopted 

LEP establishes how the 

council will tackle alleged 

breaches of planning 

control 

N/A 

Innovation N/A N/A 

Reputation An up to date adopted 

LEP establishes how the 

council will tackle alleged 

breaches of planning 

control 

N/A 

Achievement of outcome N/A N/A 

Property N/A N/A 

Community Support Workshops were held with 

volunteer parish councils 

to help review and draft 

the LEP.   

A 6 week consultation was 

undertaken. 

Parish Councils involved 

in the workshop to act as 

advocates. 

Timescales National guidance 

recommends LEPs are 

reviewed every 2 years.   

Opportunity to direct 

resources to the most 

harmful breaches of 

planning control 

Project capacity N/A N/A 

Other N/A N/A 

 
8 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

8.1 The existing Local Enforcement Plan was last updated in January 2020.  
National legislation recommends Local Planning Authorities adopt a local 

Page 9



 

enforcement plan every 2 years.  Therefore a review of the current plan is 
overdue.   

8.2 National Planning Practice guidance explains that having a local enforcement 
plan is important because: 

• allows engagement in the process of defining objectives and priorities 
which are tailored to local circumstances; 

• sets out the priorities for enforcement action, which will inform decisions 
about when to take enforcement action; 

• provides greater transparency and accountability about how the local 
planning authority will decide if it is expedient to exercise its discretionary 
powers; 

• provides greater certainty for all parties engaged in the development 
process. 

8.3 The Service Lead Built Environment invited a group of parish councils to 
attend 2 workshops Chaired by Cabinet Member for Place and Local Plan to 
review the existing local enforcement plan and make suggested changes.   

8.4 This method of engagement enabled a greater understanding of the 
legislative framework within which Enforcement operates and the also an 
understanding of how Parish Councils operate.  

8.5 The Parish Councils involved in the workshops have been very supportive of 
the work to date and will act as advocates to other parish councils.   

8.6 The Local Enforcement Plan will ensure that the resources in the team can be 
directed to those alleged breaches of planning control causing the most 
serious planning harm.   

8.7 The previous plan had 3 priorities, but this has been changed to 2 priorities to 
target and prioritise our resources as follows:- 

• Priority 1 – Breaches that may result in immediate, substantial or 
irreversible harm and are actively occurring on site.  A site visit will be 
undertaken within one working day of receipt of a report. 

• Priority 2 – Other breaches of planning control listed in the policy which 
includes unauthorised residential or commercial development; residential 
caravans (including gypsy, travellers and travelling show people).  

8.8 All new cases will be triaged on receipt to decide if they fall within priority 1 or 
2.  Many reports to the enforcement team are not breaches of planning control 
or fall to other agencies to investigate.  These cases will be closed on receipt 
and sign posted to the relevant agency.   A series of FAQ’s is published on 
our web site which includes contact details for other agencies. 

Page 10



 

8.9 Existing open enforcement cases will be reviewed and moved into Priority 1 or 
Priority 2 category.  Cases that do not fall within Priority 1 or 2 will be closed.  

8.10 Effective enforcement is important to: 

• tackle breaches of planning control which would otherwise have 
unacceptable impact on the amenity of the area; 

• maintain the integrity of the decision-making process; 

• help ensure that public acceptance of the decision-making process is 
maintained. 

8.11 Monitoring the effectiveness of the Local Enforcement Plan is essential.  
Quantitative and qualitative measures will be used to measure success.   The 
plan lists a range of quantitative measures which will be reviewed and 
monitored on a quarterly basis.   

8.12 Measuring success is more challenging as taking enforcement action is 
difficult and take times.  If a contravener receives an enforcement notice they 
have a right of appeal, which effectively puts the enforcement notice in 
abeyance pending the appeal.   

8.13 The government publishes data on how long take planning and enforcement 
appeals take.  In March 2025 (the latest published data), enforcement appeals 
were taking between 38 (inquiries) and 63 (hearings) weeks (mean average).   
Appeals: how long they take - GOV.UK 

8.14 Government measures success at appeal over a rolling 2 year period.  For the 
period 1st May 2023 to April 2025 we received 38 enforcement appeal 
decisions.  Of those 13 were dismissed (34.21%), 11 allowed (28.95%) and 
14 withdrawn (36.84%).  A withdrawn appeal usually means that the 
enforcement notice takes effect, therefore dismissed and withdrawn appeals 
equals 71%.  Winning 70% of enforcement appeals is positive and aligns with 
our local KPI.  This is a positive measure of successfully defending the 
enforcement action the council take. 

8.15 Adopting a local enforcement plan will support resource management and 
target resources.  It is therefore recommended that this Local Enforcement 
Plan is adopted.  

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

9.1 A Local Enforcement Plan is recommended by national planning guidance. 
Engagement with Parish Councils and Members will has helped to ensure that 
the new Local Enforcement Plan is fit for purpose, is clear on how alleged 
breaches of planning control will be dealt with and how we communicate that 
with Parish Councils, Ward Members and complainants.  It establishes how 
we prioritise alleged breaches of planning control. 

Page 11

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/appeals-average-timescales-for-arranging-inquiries-and-hearings


 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Cabinet/Committee Reports or Cabinet Member Decisions:- 

Health and Environment Policy Committee 9th October 2019.  Agenda for Health and 
Environment Policy Committee on Wednesday, 9th October, 2019, 6.30 pm - 
Winchester City Council 

Cabinet Member Announcement – LEP approved for publication under Officer 
delegated powers Printed minutes 21st-May-2020 17.00 Cabinet.pdf 

Other Background Documents:- 

Current Local Enforcement Plan January 2020 Local Enforcement Plan - Winchester 
City Council 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990  

Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 

National Planning Policy Framework National Planning Practice Guidance 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Local Enforcement Plan – June 2025 

 

Page 12

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=350&MID=2013#AI3629
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=350&MID=2013#AI3629
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=350&MID=2013#AI3629
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/g2106/Printed%20minutes%2021st-May-2020%2017.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=1
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/local-enforcement-plan
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/local-enforcement-plan


LOCAL	
ENFORCEMENT 
PLAN 

MONTH 2025 

W I N C H E S T E R  C I T Y  C O U N C I L

W I N C H E S T E R . G O V . U K

Page 13



Contents
Introduction 

	 National Policy and Guidance 

	 Breaches of Planning Control 

The South Downs National Park 

Hampshire County Council 

Our Legislation

Our Principles 

	 Discretion 	

	 Operate within the Law 

	 Discretion 

	 Proportionality 

	 Consistency and Fairness 

	 Transparency 

How to Report a Suspected Breach of 
Planning Control 

Communication and What you can 
Expect if you Report a Suspected Breach 
of Planning Control 

Our Priorities 

High Hedges

Hedgerow Regulations 1997 

The Contravener – What to Expect 

The Decision/Action

Enforcement Toolkit

The Appeals Process 

Where an Offence is Committed 

	 Prosecution 

	 Direct Action 

	 Injunction 

Proactive Enforcement and Compliance 

Complaints about the Council’s 
Planning Enforcement Service 

Monitoring and Review 

Planning Enforcement FAQs 

Other Useful Links and Contact Details 

Appendix 1 - What is a breach of 
Planning Control? 

Appendix 2 - Matters that are not 
breaches of Planning Control 

Appendix 3 - Flowcharts: 

Appendix 4 - WCC and SDNP District 
and Ward Map with Links to find your 
Parish

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

7

8

8

8

8

8

9

10

12

13

13

14

15

16

17

18

18

18

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

26

27

31

Page 14



Introduction 
Winchester City Council places great 
importance on protecting its communities, 
its heritage, and the natural environment 
from unauthorised development that 
causes harm. An effective planning 
enforcement service is an important means 
of achieving this goal and maintaining the 
integrity of the planning system.

As part of its commitment to the delivery 
of an efficient and effective planning 
enforcement regime, Winchester City 
Council has prepared this revised version 
of its Local Enforcement Plan (LEP) in 
accordance with the NPPF. 

The plan sets out the Council’s approach 
to planning enforcement; it explains how 
alleged breaches of planning control 
will be investigated; the basis on which 
decisions may be made; and the Council’s 
approach to pro-active monitoring.

1

Page 15



National Policy 
and Guidance 

2

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides 
the main legislative provisions regarding breaches 
of planning control, with policy guidance provided 
in the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
“Enforcement and post-permission matters: 
Responding to suspected breaches of planning 
control” (March 2014 last updated July 2019).

Section 4 Paragraph 60 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) document: December 2024 
states:

Effective enforcement is important to maintain 
public confidence in the planning system. 
Enforcement action is discretionary, and local 
planning authorities should act proportionately 
in responding to suspected breaches of planning 
control. They should consider publishing a local 
enforcement plan to manage enforcement 
proactively, in a way that is appropriate to 
their area. This should set out how they will 
monitor the implementation of planning 
permissions, investigate alleged cases of 
unauthorised development and take action 
where appropriate.

The NPPG (at para 006) explains that it is important 
to prepare and adopt a local enforcement plan 
because it:

•	 Allows engagement in the process of defining 
objectives and priorities which are tailored to local 
circumstances.

•	 Sets out the priorities for enforcement action, 
which will inform decisions about when to take 
enforcement action.

•	 Provides greater transparency and accountability 
about how the local planning authority 
will decide if it is expedient to exercise its 
discretionary powers; provides greater certainty 
for all parties engaged in the development 
process.

Page 16



Breaches 
of Planning 
Control 

The majority of building works and/or changes of 
use may need planning permission if considered 
to be development. The display of advertisements; 
works to a Listed Building; or works to protected 
(TPO) trees can also require consent. Undertaking 
development without first obtaining planning 
permission or consent; or carrying out the building 
work or change of use without complying with 
the conditions of a permission, is described as a 
breach of planning control.

At the end of this document, guidance as to what 
is a breach of planning control is provided in 
Appendix 1 and what is not a breach of planning 
control is provided in Appendix 2.

3

Page 17



4

Winchester City Council also undertakes planning 
enforcement (excluding minerals and waste development) 
in the part of the district which lies within the South 
Downs National Park on behalf of the South Downs 
National Park Authority (SDNPA). For details of the 
approach to planning enforcement in the national park 
please refer to the SDNPA’s Enforcement Guide: 

https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/SDNPA-

Enforcement-Guide-Amended-Sep-2018.pdf

You can check whether a site is located within the national 
park by using the address search page on the SDNPA’s 
website: www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-applications/
residents/

A map is included in Appendix 4 to show which parts of 
the district are within the national park.

South Downs 
National Park

South Downs National Park Authority 
ENFORCEMENT GUIDE

Page 18

https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/SDNPA-Enforcement-Guide-Amended-Sep-2018.pdf
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/SDNPA-Enforcement-Guide-Amended-Sep-2018.pdf
www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-applications/residents/
www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-applications/residents/
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/SDNPA-Enforcement-Guide-Amended-Sep-2018.pdf
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/SDNPA-Enforcement-Guide-Amended-Sep-2018.pdf
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/SDNPA-Enforcement-Guide-Amended-Sep-2018.pdf


Hampshire County Council (HCC) has the overall responsibility 
for taking enforcement action relating to ‘County matters’. 
This excludes areas covered by the South Downs 
National Park, who retain sole responsibility of their 
district. ‘County matters’ are defined in Schedule 1 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Town and 
Country Planning (Prescription of County Matters) (England) 
Regulations 2003, and these are:

•	 The use of land; 

•	 The carrying out of building, engineering or other 
operations; or 

•	 The erection of plant or machinery used or proposed 
to be used, wholly or mainly for the purposes of 
recovering, treating, storing, processing, sorting, 
transferring or depositing of waste; 

•	 The use of land or the carrying out of operations for any 
purposes ancillary to any use or operations specified in 
paragraph (a) above, including the formation, laying out, 
construction or alteration of a vehicular access to any 
public highway. 

Winchester City Council is not responsible for breaches of 
planning control concerning minerals and waste development.   

Further information relating to HCC’s planning enforcement 
powers can be found within their Planning Enforcement & Site 
Monitoring Plan. 

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/planning-strategic/
HampshireCountyCouncilPlanningEnforcement

Hampshire 
County Council 

5

Page 19

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/planning-strategic/HampshireCountyCouncilPlanningEnforcement
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/planning-strategic/HampshireCountyCouncilPlanningEnforcement


Other legislation

6

Environmental Health Team

The Environmental Health Team at Winchester 
City Council are available to investigate matters 
relating to the following:

•	 Animal Welfare

•	 Noise nuisance

•	 Artificial light nuisance

•	 Bonfires

•	 The Enforcement Team may consult the 
Environmental Health Team on when cases 
refer to issues. However, complaints where 
the sole breach is concerned with the 
harm originating from the above will be 
asked to contact the Environmental Health 
Team directly.

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/environment

Building Control

Winchester City Council’s Building Control Team 
functions include the following:

•	 Building Regulations

•	 Fire safety

•	 Dangerous structures 

•	 Demolition of buildings (that would not 
require Planning Permission or Listed Building 
Consent)

The Building Regulations. (Amendment) (England) 
Regulations 2023 make changes to building 
regulations that will apply to all building work, 
to raise standards across the built environment. 
Legal responsibilities will be placed on those who 
commission building work, participate in the 
design and construction process and carry out the 
building control function, to make sure building 
work is compliant with building regulations.

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/building-control

Contact details for both departments can be found at the end of this document. 

Page 20

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/environment

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/building-control


7

Our Principles 

Winchester City Council will seek where it is appropriate 
to remedy all breaches of planning control that it considers 
seriously harmful, using all the enforcement tools at its 
disposal; and where there is serious harm, the Council 
will act swiftly and robustly in order to resolve the matter. 
Please note that in most cases it is not a criminal offence 
to carry out development without having first obtained 
planning permission (exceptions include unauthorised works 
to listed buildings and protected trees). However, failure to 
comply with an enforcement notice within the timescales 
specified in the notice may result in criminal prosecution 
being sought by the Council to ensure compliance with 
outstanding requirements.

The law says that Councils may issue an enforcement notice 
if it is deemed expedient to do so, having regard to the 
Council’s Local Plan and any other material considerations. 
Expediency in this context refers to the appropriateness 
and necessity of taking enforcement action based on the 
specific circumstances and potential impacts of the planning 
breach. In deciding, therefore, whether it is expedient to 
serve an enforcement notice, Planning Enforcement Officers 
must determine if the breach of planning control is harmful 
or likely to give rise to harm. If the breach is not harmful, or 
is unlikely to be harmful in the future, formal action will not 
be pursued. Note that a complainant’s perception of what 
is harmful may differ from what is established as ‘planning 
harm’ with an associated level of severity assessed. It should 
be noted that planning laws and policies are designed to 
manage the development and use of land and buildings 
in the public interest. They are not intended to protect 
the private interests of one person against the activities of 
another. The Council will not become involved in neighbour 
disputes or other private property related issues. Cases 
which centre on neighbour disputes will be closed on 
receipt. 

What is Planning Harm – “planning” harm refers to the 
adverse effects on public interests that planning authorities 
consider when assessing planning applications and 
breaches. This type of harm is often different from the harm 
that an individual or neighbour may perceive. Consequently, 
the service may not always meet your expectations in 

considering the impact of a planning breach on you or your 
property. Only “material planning considerations” can be 
taken into account, as listed below. Evidence demonstrating 
harm within the context of those material considerations 
has to reach a high bar. For instance, overlooking must be

direct, close enough to affect privacy, and impact the main 
amenity areas of a property. Just because you can see a 
new window does not mean that it will be ‘overlooking’ 
you in planning terms.

Material considerations can include (but are not 
limited to): 

•	 Overlooking/loss of privacy, 

•	 Loss of light or overshadowing, 

•	 Parking, 

•	 Highway safety, 

•	 Traffic, 

•	 Noise, 

•	 Effect on listed building and conservation area, 

•	 Layout and density of building, 

•	 Design, appearance and materials, 

•	 Government policy, 

•	 Disabled persons’ access, 

•	 Proposals in the Development Plan, 

•	 Previous planning decisions (including appeal decisions), 

•	 Nature conservation. 

Issues such as loss of view, or negative effect on the value 
of properties are not material considerations. There is no set 
list defining material considerations and your Local Planning 
Authority will decide what is deemed to be ‘material’. For 
more information see What are material considerations? - 
Planning Portal .

Discretion 

www.planningportal.co.uk/services/help/faq/planning/about-
the-planning-system/what-are-material-considerations.

Page 21

www.planningportal.co.uk/services/help/faq/planning/about-the-planning-system/what-are-material-considerations.
www.planningportal.co.uk/services/help/faq/planning/about-the-planning-system/what-are-material-considerations.


Winchester City Council recognises 
that carrying out unauthorised 
development, without first 
obtaining the necessary planning 
permission or consent, can have a 
harmful impact upon the district’s 
natural environment, residents, 
businesses, and visitors. Effective 
planning enforcement is important, 
both to retain public confidence
in the planning process, and to 
maintain the perception of
fairness for the benefit of those 
who follow the rules, as well as 
those experiencing the impacts of 
development.

However, the Council must also 
operate within the law and 
remember that the legal framework 
is initially about assessing, and then 
(as appropriate) removing any harm 
caused by those breaching the 
rules.

Operate within 
the Law

The Council is committed to ensuring that all enforcement related allegations are dealt with in a consistent and fair 
manner. Planning Enforcement Officers may take into account other similar cases so far as relevant and will endeavour 
to adopt a consistent approach. Officers are required to give careful consideration to Human Rights and to the Council’s 
equality duty, as well as data protection legislation (GDPR), and will do so to the extent necessary. The Planning 
Enforcement Team will liaise with other council departments such as Housing and Economic Development where action 
may affect residences and businesses.

Consistency and 
Fairness  

Any action the Council takes must 
be proportionate to the degree of 
harm caused by the unauthorised 
development or use. Planning 
Enforcement Officers will not 
hesitate to take swift and effective 
enforcement action where there
is serious harm and formal actions 
can be upheld in the event of 
an appeal and/or in front of a 
judge. In cases where the harm 
is not so serious officers will first 
try to resolve the matter through 
appropriate negotiation.

If this is required, the Council will 
seek to ensure that it is undertaken 
in both a cost effective and timely 
manner before any decision to issue 
an enforcement notice is taken.

Proportionality 

Planning Enforcement Officers will 
identify themselves by name and 
provide their contact details in all 
correspondence and when meeting 
people on site. They will explain 
what is decided, clearly, and in 
plain English, and try to avoid 
jargon where at all possible. The 
Planning Enforcement Team will 
maintain the council’s enforcement 
notices register. Anyone wishing to 
view the register may do so online 
www.winchester.gov.uk/
planning/planning-enforcement/
enforcement-notices

Transparency 

8

Page 22

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-notices
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-notices
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-notices


9

How to Report a Suspected 
Breach of Planning Control 
The way to report a suspected breach is by using the 
“Report a suspected breach of planning control” button on 
the Planning Enforcement page of the council’s website:

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-
enforcement/report-a-suspected-breach-of-planning-control 
The Planning Enforcement Team will not accept anonymous 
allegations or reports, as the Planning Enforcement Officers 
need the complainant’s contact details to understand 
more about the complaint being made, to provide updates 
on the investigation and/ or actions that have been 
taken, or to request further information. The Planning 
Enforcement Officers will ensure that the complainant’s 
identity is safeguarded within and outside the council, 
though in some circumstances it may be necessary for 
the complainant to give evidence at an appeal or at legal 
proceedings.

If someone does not wish to provide these details because 
they have reason to be concerned about this, a Ward 
Councillor or a Parish Councillor may assist with lodging the 
complaint.

The contact details for Ward Councillors can be found on 
the Council’s website: 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.
aspx?bcr=1

The contact details for Parish clerks can also be found on 
the Council’s website: 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/
mgParishCouncilDetails.aspx?bcr=1

Anyone who reports a suspected breach of planning control 
will need to give their name, address and contact details, 
and a description of the breach, including the address. It 
would also be helpful if we are provided with the following 
information:

•	 When the alleged breach began,

•	 Who is thought to be responsible, including their name 
and contact details,

•	 Clear photos of the alleged breach,

•	 A description of the harm which is caused,

•	 Indicate how you are affected.

It may take longer to investigate if this information is not 
provided.

Page 23

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/report-a-suspected-breach-of-planning-control
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/report-a-suspected-breach-of-planning-control
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgParishCouncilDetails.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgParishCouncilDetails.aspx?bcr=1


10

Communication and 
What you can Expect 
If you Report a Suspected Breach of Planning Control.  

The process for how the Planning Enforcement Team 
will respond to an alleged breach of planning control is 
described below. Flowcharts are provided in Appendix 3 
which explains our two-stage investigation process and 
how we assess the following considerations:

•	 Not a planning matter, 

•	 No breach, 

•	 Out of time, 

•	 Level of planning harm - low, 

•	 Level of planning harm – high, 

•	 Application submitted, 

•	 Application not submitted.

Upon receiving a planning enforcement complaint, it will be 
logged and allocated a case reference number. You will be 
sent an acknowledgment within 5 working days with the 
reference number and confirmation if enough information 
has been provided. The case will be triaged by the 
Enforcement Technician and the Enforcement Team Leader 
and given a priority number based on harm level and in 
accordance with Section 6 of this Plan. We may not carry 
out a site visit at this stage, except for Priority 1 sites. You 
will receive an automated notification if the case is taken 
forward for a further Stage 2 investigation (see flow charts 
at Appendix 3). At this Stage, it is likely that a Planning 
Enforcement Officer will conduct a site visit; this is based 
on priority status, information received, and the outcome 
of the Stage 1 investigation.  Site visits will remain at the 
discretion of the Enforcement Team. 

Please note that Planning Enforcement Officers conduct 
independent visits for investigative purposes only, and 
do not meet with complainants. Many cases, especially 
those at Stage 1, do not require site visits and are assessed 
on a case-by-case basis by the Principal Officers and 
Team Leader so we can match the capacity of the team 
proportionately with the nature of the breach and ensure 
efficiency of the service to help all our customers.

Planning Enforcement Officers value greatly the assistance 
they receive from Town and Parish Councils in reporting and 
monitoring enforcement matters. The Enforcement Team 
will keep Ward Councillors and Parish Councils updated on 
case progress and outcomes via automated monthly lists of 
new, live, and closed cases. Parish and Ward Members are 
encouraged to proactively monitor these lists and contact 
the case officers directly to help us identify the sites that 
matter most to local people and neighbours.

All customers who have raised a complaint will be advised 
of the reasons for a case closure. Appendix 3 gives an 
overview of this communication process through the end-
to-end system.

The time within which planning enforcement cases are 
resolved depends upon a number of factors, such as: 

•	 The level of detail included in the initial complaint,

•	 The type of breach,

•	 The level of harm that the breach is causing,

•	 The evidence required to prove that there is a breach,

•	 The willingness of the landowner and/or developer to 
aid in our investigations,

•	 The compliancy of the landowner and /or developer to 
resolve the breach and take up the options offered by 
the LPA,

•	 The submission of a (retrospective) planning application,

•	 Whether an appeal is submitted to the Planning 
Inspectorate against an enforcement notice,

•	 The timelines imposed on a Notice or by the Planning 
Inspectorate to resolve.

Page 24



11

The case officers will update complainants of the progress 
of all enforcement investigations at key stages. Please 
bear in mind that the timeframe for this can be many 
weeks and months due to the reactive and complex 
nature of enforcement. Examples of key stages:

Examples of key stages: 

•	 Remedy is underway,   

•	 An Enforcement Notice has been served,  

•	 A planning application or appeal has been submitted. 
Please note that we often close cases where this 
has happened, and will monitor the outcome, 
later reopening a case where there is further 
enforcement input needed. 

The Council resolves 40-60% of most cases within less 
than 12 weeks of the date of receipt. We will advise when 
each enforcement investigation is closed, including an 
explanation of the reasons and if no further action is taken.

The Enforcement Team will not be able to provide specific 
timeframes for the resolution of individual enforcement 
cases. Enforcement cases can be complex and involve 
multiple stages, including investigation, negotiation, 
and potential legal action. Each case is unique and may 
require varying amounts of time to gather evidence, 
consult with relevant parties, and ensure compliance 
with planning regulations. As a result, the duration of 
enforcement processes can be unpredictable and may 
extend over several months or even years. The Service will 
continuously monitor and action cases when appropriate 
and provide updates to interested parties at key stages of 
the investigation.

Page 25



12

Our Priorities

Priority 1 

Outside of the South Downs National Park, the Council typically receives complaints of up to 500 alleged breaches of 
planning control each year. With the aim of providing an efficient service, the Council has adopted a priority system for 
alleged breaches on the basis of the likely degree of planning harm. Matters not covered under Priority 1 or Priority 2 will 
not be investigated. 

Reported breaches of planning control that may result in immediate, substantial or irreversible 
harm and are actively occurring on site will be given the highest priority and a council officer will 
carry out a site visit within one working day of receipt of the report. For example:

 

Priority 2 

•	 Unauthorised residential or commercial development

•	 Stationing a new residential caravan in the countryside 
(including gypsy sites and travelling showpeople sites)

•	 Commencement of development (following the grant 
of planning permission) without discharging ‘pre- 
commencement’ conditions.

•	 Building / engineering works that are causing harm or 
are likely to cause harm to the landscape, a conservation 
area, or a Site of Special Scientific Interest

•	 Works not in accordance with a planning permission 
(minor deviations will not be pursed)

•	 All other breaches of conditions

•	 Other changes of use

•	 Earthworks and changes to land levels (excluding 
County matters)

•	 Display of advertisements

•	 Agricultural developments

•	 Equestrian related developments

•	 Gates, walls, fences

•	 Outbuildings

•	 Satellite Dishes

•	 Untidy Land

In many cases, given the nature of the alleged breach and type of impacts, it is acceptable and 
often unnecessary to conduct a site visit for all alleged breaches. The list below is considered to be 
lower priority and will be investigated in accordance with the above procedure, within a timeframe 
and priority order at the discretion of the Enforcement Team Leader following triage. Priority Two 
examples are below:

•	 Unauthorised works to listed buildings or ancient monuments,

•	 (substantial) demolition works in a conservation area,

•	 Works to protected trees,

•	 Substantive breaches of a Construction Management Plan where the breach is actively or at high risk of polluting and 
environmentally damaging or harming a site or area.

Page 26



13

High Hedges 
Under the Antisocial Behaviour Act 2003, the Planning 
Enforcement Team have the powers to act as a last 
resort against nuisance high hedges. The High Hedge 
service includes a fee. This fee is non-refundable, even 
if the complaint is upheld and the Enforcement Team 
will retain an administration fee of half the value if the 
application is found not to follow the required stages. 
Before lodging

a complaint to the Council, it is important that 
complainants read the details set out in the Over 
the Garden Hedge leaflet www.gov.uk/government/
publications/over-the-garden-hedgeand High Hedges: 
Complaining to the Council www.gov.uk/government/
publications/high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council/
high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council (www.gov.uk). 
A brief summary of the High Hedge legislation is below

•	 Only applies to hedges and complaints cannot be 
accepted for tall trees,

•	 Only applies to evergreen or semi-evergreen hedges 
more than two metres high,

•	 The height must have an adverse effect on the 
reasonable enjoyment of your domestic property.

Further details can be found on our website 

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-
enforcement/high-hedges

Hedgerow 
Regulations 1997
The Hedgerow Regulations 1997, which came into effect on 
June 1, 1997, established new guidelines for local planning 
authorities to protect and preserve significant hedgerows in 
rural areas.

These regulations outline specific criteria for determining 
the importance of a hedgerow, including:

•	 Its value from an archaeological, historical, landscape, 
or wildlife perspective.

•	 Its age, with hedgerows older than 30 years 
automatically considered important. However, younger 
hedgerows that meet the other criteria are also deemed 
important.

To remove a hedgerow, landowners must submit an 
application for consideration by the local planning 
authority.

Removing hedgerows without prior approval can result in 
an unlimited fine as well as the requirement to replace the 
hedgerow.

For more information, please visit the Hedgerows website.

www.winchester.gov.uk/natural-environment/hedgerows

Page 27

www.gov.uk/government/publications/over-the-garden-hedgeand
www.gov.uk/government/publications/over-the-garden-hedgeand
www.gov.uk/government/publications/high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council/high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council
www.gov.uk/government/publications/high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council/high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council
www.gov.uk/government/publications/high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council/high-hedges-complaining-to-the-council
www.gov.uk
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/high-hedges
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/high-hedges
www.winchester.gov.uk/natural-environment/hedgerows


14

The Contravener 
– What to Expect 
The contravener will be advised of their best options 
for how to resolve the situation, by when, and what 
will happen if the advice is not followed. If the problem 
persists and is demonstrably harmful the Council may 
decide to take formal enforcement action. If the problem 
can be resolved with conditions attached to a planning 
permission, then the contravener will be advised to submit a 
retrospective planning application. Where there are complex 
breaches to resolve, the contravener is strongly encouraged 
to use the council’s enforcement pre-application service 
to guide the submission of a planning application. It must 
not be assumed that planning permission will be granted 
retrospectively.

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/
planning-enforcement-pre-application-advice

If the contravener does not provide the necessary 
information required to establish whether a breach of 
planning control has occurred, or the extent of the

development, then a Planning Contravention Notice may be 
served which requires the provision of specific information. 
It is a criminal offence not to comply with this Notice. See 
the flowcharts in Appendix 3 of what to expect.

If enforcement action is taken, information relating to any 
right of appeal will be provided with the notice served.

Page 28

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/planning-enforcement-pre-application-advice
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/planning-enforcement-pre-application-advice


15

The Decision / Action 

When an enforcement notice is issued it will include 
the reasons for taking enforcement action, state clearly 
what must be done to remedy the breach of planning 
control, and specify the time in which those works must 
be completed. See how to access the Public Register 
of Enforcement Notices here www.winchester.gov.uk/
planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-notices 

The Council may decide to take immediate action to halt 
unauthorised development with the use of Temporary 
Stop Notices and Stop Notices. This power is discretionary, 
and the Council must be satisfied that it is expedient that 
any relevant activity should cease. The effects of issuing 
stop notices can have immediate, serious consequences 
and these must be balanced against the likely benefits to 
amenity in the vicinity of the site. A stop notice can only 
prohibit what is essential to safeguard amenity or 
public safety in the neighbourhood; or to prevent 
serious or irreversible harm to the environment in 
the surrounding area.

Details of the “Enforcement Toolkit” can be found on the 
following page.

Many cases do not result in enforcement action being 
taken. Enforcement investigations can be closed for 
several reasons, such as:

•	 There is no breach of planning control,

•	 The breach is remedied,

•	 If it is “permitted development” or within the 
tolerances of permitted development authorised by 
law (e.g. General Permitted Development Order) 
www.planningportal.co.uk/permission/responsibilities/
planning-permission/permitted-development-rights 

•	 Planning permission has been granted retrospectively,

•	 Planning permission is not required,

•	 The development has become lawful (due to time 
elapsed),

•	 It is not expedient to pursue enforcement action.

Even if a breach of planning control is found to have 
occurred it is not always expedient to take enforcement 
action because, for example, the works may be so 
minor that they do not cause harm. This is a matter of 
judgement for the Council and is often referred to as a 
technical breach of planning control. The Council decides 
the degree of harm and whether the breach is minor or 
serious in each case.

If it is found that the alleged breach is not a planning 
matter, but something that may be handled by another 
council department or outside body/organisation, the 
Enforcement Team will advise you of this and direct you to 
the appropriate team. See the list of what is, and what is 
not a planning matter in Appendices 1 and 2, and the list 
of Useful Contacts.

In some instances, such as ongoing neighbour disputes, 
we may suggest that you contact the Solent Restorative 
Partnership Service to help resolve complaints. This 
service covers the entire Winchester district and is free to 
members of the public. For further information on this 
service, please visit: https://solentrestorativepartnership.
org.uk/.

 

The Council has a wide variety of enforcement “tools” that can be used if the decision 
is made to taken enforcement action. These can be viewed at www.gov.uk/guidance/
ensuring-effective-enforcement#contents.

Page 29

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-notices
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-notices
www.planningportal.co.uk/permission/responsibilities/planning-permission/permitted-development-rights
www.planningportal.co.uk/permission/responsibilities/planning-permission/permitted-development-rights
https://solentrestorativepartnership.org.uk/
https://solentrestorativepartnership.org.uk/
www.gov.uk/guidance/ensuring-effective-enforcement#contents
www.gov.uk/guidance/ensuring-effective-enforcement#contents


16

Enforcement Toolkit

Planning 
Contravention 
Notice (PCN)

Planning 
Enforcement Order

Enforcement 
Warning Notice

Enforcement Notice
Breach of Condition 

Notice

A PCN can be issued 
under Section 171C 

of the Town and 
Country Planning 

Act 1990 in order to 
gather information 

regarding a 
suspected breach.

A planning 
enforcement order 
allows authorities 

to address apparent 
breaches of 

planning control 
even if the time 

limits have expired 
due to deliberate 

concealment.

An Enforcement 
Warning Notice 

enables the Council 
to formally invite 
a retrospective 

planning application 
when it is 

considered that a 
planning application 

is the appropriate 
way forward to 
regularise the 

breach. 

A Planning 
Enforcement Notice 
is a legal document 

made by the 
Council requiring a 
land owner to take 
action in order to 

resolve a breach of 
planning control

A breach of 
conditions notice 

mandates the 
recipient to comply 
with the planning 

conditions specified 
by the local 

planning authority.

Stop Notice Temporary Stop Notice S215 Notice Injunction

A stop notice can halt 
any activities related to 
the alleged planning 

control breaches 
mentioned in the 

enforcement notice, 
before the compliance 

deadline.

Temporary stop notices 
enable local planning 
authorities to swiftly 
address breaches of 

planning control, including 
unauthorised activities. 

They can prohibit various 
activities, even those 

occurring intermittently or 
seasonally.

A Section 215 notice 
can be issued by the 

Council, requiring the 
owner or occupier of 
land to take steps to 
improve its condition 

when the current state 
is adversely affecting the 

amenity of the area.

A local planning 
authority can apply 

to the High Court or 
County Court for an 
injunction to restrain 

an actual or anticipated 
breach of planning 

control if they deem it 
necessary.

Page 30



17

The Appeals Process 
There is a right of appeal to the Secretary of 
State against an enforcement notice, a listed 
building enforcement notice and an advertisement 
discontinuance notice within a specified time frame.

If an appeal is lodged with the Secretary of State, further enforcement 
action by the Council regarding this notice is suspended until the appeal 
decision is issued.

For information on how to make an appeal against a planning 
enforcement notice or how to submit comments on an appeal 
of an enforcement notice please visit: www.gov.uk/guidance/
appeals#Enforcement-appeal

There is a right of appeal to the Magistrate’s Court for Section 215 
(untidy land) notices. Further enforcement action will be suspended if an 
appeal is lodged to the Magistrate’s Court, pending a decision.

There is no right of appeal for a temporary stop notice, a stop notice, 
Section 224 advertisement notice or a breach of condition notice.

With every notice served, details of any right of appeal will be provided. 
See the Enforcement Appeals website for further information and details 
of current and historic appeals: www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/
planning-enforcement/enforcements-appeals.

Page 31

www.gov.uk/guidance/appeals#Enforcement-appeal
www.gov.uk/guidance/appeals#Enforcement-appeal
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcements-appeals.
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcements-appeals.


18

Where an Offence 
is Committed 
PROSECUTION 

It is a criminal offence to carry out works that 
require listed building consent without getting 
consent first, or to carry out works to protected trees 
without prior notification and/or consent.

It is also an offence to display some advertisements 
or undertake substantial demolition within a 
conservation area without prior permission. In most 
other cases a criminal offence only arises when an 
enforcement notice has been issued, has taken effect 
and its requirements have not been complied with 
by the specified date. The Planning Enforcement 
Officers, in consultation with the Council’s legal team 
will apply the two key tests set down in the Code for 
Crown Prosecutors in deciding whether prosecution 
is justified www.cps.gov.uk/publication/code-crown-
prosecutors.

The tests are: 

•	 Is there sufficient evidence against the defendant? 

•	 Is it in the public interest to bring the case to 
court? 

The Council will always try to use its officers as 
witnesses in Court. However, there will be some cases 
where it will be necessary to rely on evidence provided 
by witnesses from outside the Council. In such cases 
the case officer will advise the witness of the possible 
need to attend court and to provide a written witness 
statement. At this point the complainant’s name will 
become public. 

The Council will always look to recover costs from 
the offender where evidence suggests offenders have 
profited from the illegal works, as a deterrent and to 
remedy the breach. A charge may be placed on the 
land to aid future recovery, or steps may be taken to 
seek confiscation under the Proceeds of Crime Act 
2002. 

DIRECT ACTION 

The Council will consider taking direct action to get 
the breach resolved as a last resort. This means that 
the Council will carry out the works and recover the 
costs from the offender. The Council might need to 
apply for a Court injunction, for instance to prevent 
access when works are in progress or unauthorised 
development, or use is anticipated.

INJUNCTION 

The Council will consider injunctive action where 
a breach of planning control is severe, or there is a 
threat of it becoming severe, and which can be halted 
by the successful application to the High Court (or 
County Court) for an Injunction.

The Council may also consider injunctive action for 
longstanding cases where the offender has failed to 
comply with an enforcement notice, and the harm is 
ongoing and now needs to be brought to an end.

The Council may apply for a prohibitive injunction 
to prevent some action or the continuation of some 
action, or it can also apply for a mandatory injunction 
to require positive action to be taken.

  

Page 32

www.cps.gov.uk/publication/code-crown-prosecutors.
www.cps.gov.uk/publication/code-crown-prosecutors.


19

Proactive Enforcement 
and Compliance 
It is the responsibility of individuals implementing development to 
comply with the conditions imposed on a planning permission. Failure 
to comply can affect not only the quality of the environment in the district or 
the amenity of neighbouring properties, but also undermine the reasons and 
justification for granting planning permission in the first instance.

The Council has chosen to carry out proactive compliance monitoring to encourage developers to implement 
developments in accordance with the approved plans and to comply with conditions, so that development 
remains acceptable in planning policy terms whilst maintaining an attractive, high-quality environment. 
By carrying out proactive compliance monitoring the Council aims to reduce the number of retrospective 
enforcement complaints received. 

In order to be proactive, and add value to the right developments, the Council will operate a risk-based 
approach in deciding which cases are to be investigated or monitored. This allows the available resources 
to be deployed in a targeted and focused way. Priority may therefore be given to monitoring the following 
developments: 

•	 Developments involving 10 or more dwellings or residential development greater than 1 hectare in area, 

•	 Commercial developments over 1000sq metres floor area or 0.5 hectares in area, 

•	 Developments subject to a planning agreement (Section 106), 

•	 Particular problematic sites such as those involving significant level changes or contamination. 

Any other developments may be inspected on a random basis at any time in order to ensure compliance. 

Planning Enforcement Officers also provide comments on: 

•	 licensing applications, and 

•	 applications for licences for caravan sites, HGV operations, etc. 

Page 33



20

Complaints about the 
Council’s Planning 
Enforcement Service 

For those who are unhappy about the level of service received 
from the Planning Enforcement Team, how the process has been 
managed, or disagree with the outcome, then in the first instance 
the concerns should be discussed with The Enforcement Team 
Leader. If this does not resolve the matter, the concerns can 
be taken further through the Council’s Corporate Complaints 
procedure Compliments and Complaints - Winchester City Council. 

If still dissatisfied by the Council’s response, the Local Government Ombudsman can be 
contacted in writing who will determine if the concerns will be investigated. Please note that 
the Local Government Ombudsman will only investigate if the Council’s complaints process 
has been completed and will only be concerned that the correct procedures have been 
followed. The Ombudsman has no power to reverse the Council’s decision. 

 

Page 34



21

Monitoring and Review 
We will monitor performance in dealing with enforcement matters 
using the following indicators: 

•	 The number of new cases received

•	 The number of cases closed

•	 Current workload (a running total of live cases)

•	 The percentage of complaints acknowledged

•	 Cases closed at point of receipt and through triage

•	 Immunity dates of ongoing cases

•	 The percentage of cases closed within the timeframes of:

•	 Less than 12 weeks; 

•	 More than 12 weeks; 

•	 Less than 6 months; 

•	 More than 6 months. 

The Winchester Local Enforcement Plan will be reviewed every two years 
or more frequently if there is new legislation or Government advice 
relating to planning enforcement. 

We are committed to continuous improvement by regularly reviewing 
enforcement case outcomes and digital processes. 

Page 35



22

Planning Enforcement 
FAQs 
Planning enforcement can be a complicated and lengthy process. In 
order to help you understand the process, we have set out a series 
of frequently asked questions with answers that should help to 
explain the process to both the complainant and the person being 
investigated. These can be found on our website:

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/
enforcement-faqs 

Page 36

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-faqs
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcement-faqs


23

Other Useful Links and 
Contacts  
Winchester City Council – Planning 
Enforcement 
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-
enforcement 

Winchester City Council – Report a Breach of 
Planning Control 
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-
enforcement/report-a-suspected-breach-of-planning-
control  

Winchester City Council Planning Department 
Email: planning@winchester.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01962 848 177 

Website: www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/ 

Winchester City Council – Planning Appeals 
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-appeals  

Winchester City Council – Enforcement 
Appeals 
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-
enforcement/enforcements-appeals  

Winchester City Council – High Hedges 
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-
enforcement/high-hedges 

Winchester City Council – Hedgerow 
Regulations 
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/landscape---
countryside/hedgerows/ 

Winchester City Council - Environmental 
Health Department 
Email: EH@winchester.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01962 848 097 

Website: www.winchester.gov.uk/environment 

Winchester City Council - Building Control 
Department 
Email: buildingcontrol@winchester.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01962 848 176 

Website: www.winchester.gov.uk/building-control 

South Downs National Park - Planning 
Department 
Email: sdplanning@winchester.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01962 848 274 

Website: www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-
applications/ 

South Downs National Park - Planning 
Enforcement Department 
www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning/enforcement/
planning-enforcement/ 

Solent Restorative Partnership 

https://solentrestorativepartnership.org.uk/  

Hampshire County Council - Highways 
Department 
Telephone: 0300 555 1388 

Website: www.hants.gov.uk/transport/
roadmaintenance/roadproblems 

Hampshire County Council - Public Rights of 
Way Department 
Telephone: 0300 555 1391 

Website: www.hants.gov.uk/
landplanningandenvironment/rightsofway/
reportaproblem 

Page 37

www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/report-a-suspected-breach-of-planning-control
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/report-a-suspected-breach-of-planning-control
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/report-a-suspected-breach-of-planning-control
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-appeals
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcements-appeals
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/enforcements-appeals
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/high-hedges
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement/high-hedges
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/landscape---countryside/hedgerows/
www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/landscape---countryside/hedgerows/
www.winchester.gov.uk/environment
www.winchester.gov.uk/building-control
www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-applications/
www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-applications/
www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning/enforcement/planning-enforcement/
www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning/enforcement/planning-enforcement/
https://solentrestorativepartnership.org.uk/
www.hants.gov.uk/transport/roadmaintenance/roadproblems
www.hants.gov.uk/transport/roadmaintenance/roadproblems
www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/rightsofway/reportaproblem
www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/rightsofway/reportaproblem
www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/rightsofway/reportaproblem


24

Hampshire County Council – Report a Breach 
of Planning 
www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/
strategic-planning/planning-breach 

GOV.UK - Planning Permission 
www.gov.uk/planning-permission-england-wales/
when-you-dont-need-it  

GOV.UK – Enforcement and Post-Permission 
Matters 
www.gov.uk/guidance/ensuring-effective-enforcement 

Environment Agency 
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/environment-
agency  

HM Land Registry 
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/land-registry 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents  

Town and Country Planning Act (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 
www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents  

National Planning Policy Framework 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-
planning-policy-framework--2  

Planning Practical Guidance 

www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-
practice-guidance 

Page 38

www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/strategic-planning/planning-breach
www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/strategic-planning/planning-breach
www.gov.uk/planning-permission-england-wales/when-you-dont-need-it
www.gov.uk/planning-permission-england-wales/when-you-dont-need-it
www.gov.uk/guidance/ensuring-effective-enforcement
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/environment-agency
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/environment-agency
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/land-registry
www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents
www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents
www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance


25

Appendix 1 
What we can investigate - What is a breach of 
planning control?  

A breach of planning control occurs when operational development 
(building or other works) or a material change of use of land, or a 
building takes place without planning permission. Examples of breaches 
of planning control are: 

•	 Not building in accordance with approved plans (following the grant 
of planning),

•	 Failure to comply to conditions attached to a planning permission,

•	 Unauthorised works to listed buildings,

•	 Unauthorised demolition within a conservation area,

•	 Unauthorised works to trees subject of a Tree Preservation Order or 
in a conservation area,

•	 Unauthorised advertisements,

•	 Unauthorised changes of use,

•	 Using a mobile home as a residence,

•	 The formation of a new vehicular access or the alteration of an 
existing vehicular access onto a trunk road or a classified road (an A, 
B or C class road).

•	 Untidy Land

Page 39



26

Appendix 2 
What we cannot investigate – 
Matters that are not breaches of 
planning control.    

Examples include: 

•	 Noise, bonfire or light nuisances, 

•	 Fly tipping, 

•	 Construction,

•	 Works undertaken to Public Rights of Way, 

•	 Internal works to a building that is not a 
listed building, 

•	 Obstruction and/or bins left on a highway, 
pavements or public right of way, 

•	 Parking commercial vehicles on the highway 
or on grass verges, 

•	 Parking caravans on residential driveways or 
within the curtilage of domestic as long as 
they are incidental to the enjoyment of the 
property, 

•	 Operating a business from home, where 
the residential use remains the primary use 
of the property and there is no significant 
impact on residential amenity or the 
character of the area,

•	 Boundary or land ownership disputes – these 
are a civil matter and cannot be controlled 
by planning legislation, 

•	 Covenants imposed on property Deeds, 

•	 Any development that is deemed to be 
‘permitted development’ under the Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 or 
in any statutory instrument revoking and 
re-enacting that Order, i.e. where it does 
not need the permission of the Council. 
Details and information regarding Permitted 
Development can be viewed via the Planning 
Portal’s interactive house - Planning Portal 
Interactive House , 

•	 The formation, laying out and construction 
of a means of access to a highway which is 
not a trunk road or a classified road where 
that access is required in connection with 
development permitted, 

•	 Clearing land of overgrowth, bushes or trees 
(provided the trees are not subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order or within a conservation 
area), 

•	 Advertisements that are either excepted 
from deemed or express consent under 
the Town and Country Planning (Control 
of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 
2007(as amended), 

•	 Dangerous structures – these are dealt with 
by the Council’s Building Control Division, 

Page 40



27

C
as

e 
is

 ra
is

ed
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ai
na

nt
is

 s
en

t a
n 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t

 le
tte

r w
ith

 c
as

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 is

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
to

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t

H
as

 e
no

ug
h 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

be
en

 
su

bm
itt

ed
?

Ye
s

N
o C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 a
sk

ed
 fo

r f
ur

th
er

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n

H
as

 e
no

ug
h 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

be
en

 
su

bm
itt

ed
?

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 a
dv

is
ed

 th
at

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ta

ke
n

an
y 

fu
rth

er

In
iti

al
as

se
ss

m
en

t: 
H

as
 a

 
br

ea
ch

 o
f p

la
nn

in
g 

ha
pp

en
ed

?

Ye
s

N
o

C
on

ce
rn

 is
 n

ot
 a

 p
la

nn
in

g 
m

at
te

r
C

on
ce

rn
 is

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t/n

ot
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

W
ou

ld
 a

no
th

er
 

de
pa

rtm
en

t b
e 

ab
le

 to
 

he
lp

?

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
 a

dv
ise

d

C
as

e 
is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
fo

r c
lo

su
re

C
as

e 
is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

P
rin

ci
pa

l 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t O
ffi

ce
r t

o 
as

se
ss

 le
ve

l o
f h

ar
m

, p
rio

rit
y 

an
d

ne
xt

 s
te

ps

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
 a

dv
ise

d

U
nc

le
ar

C
as

e 
pu

t i
nt

o 
qu

eu
e 

fo
r s

ite
 v

isi
t o

r 
ot

he
r a

ct
io

n
D

ire
ct

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 o
ffi

ce
r

Is
 th

e 
br

ea
ch

 o
f h

ig
h 

ha
rm

?

En
fo

rc
em

en
t o

ffi
ce

r t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

co
nd

uc
t s

ite
 v

is
it

C
as

e 
to

 b
e 

pi
ck

ed
 u

p 
by

 n
ex

t
av

ai
la

bl
e 

of
fic

erYe
s

N
o

Ye
s

N
o

S
ta

ge
 1

:
In

iti
al

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n

C
on

ta
ct

 p
oi

nt
s:

 s
em

i-a
ut

om
at

ed

D
ec

is
io

ns
 

Ac
tio

n 
un

de
rta

ke
n

C
on

ta
ct

 p
oi

nt
s:

 a
ut

om
at

ed

K
ey

P
ar

is
h 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

C
on

ta
ct

 p
oi

nt
s:

 s
em

i-a
ut

om
at

ed

D
ec

is
io

ns
 

Ac
tio

n 
un

de
rta

ke
n

C
on

ta
ct

 p
oi

nt
s:

 a
ut

om
at

ed

K
ey

M
on

th
ly 

Pa
ris

h 
Li

st
s 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 o

f 
R

ec
ie

ve
d,

 L
iv

e 
an

d 
Cl

os
ed

 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t C
as

es

Pa
ris

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

ci
ev

e 
lis

t 
an

d 
de

te
rm

in
e 

lo
ca

l P
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

nd
 to

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
Te

am

En
fo

rc
em

en
t T

ea
m

 lo
g 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

ca
se

 a
s 

Pa
ris

h 
Pr

io
rit

y

Pa
ris

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
is 

lo
gg

ed
 a

s 
a 

co
m

pl
ai

na
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t c

as
e

En
fo

rc
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r i
s 

no
tif

ie
d 

of
 

Pa
ris

h 
Pr

io
rit

y

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r u

pd
at

es
 P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
ta

tu
s 

of
 

E
nf

or
em

en
t c

as
e 

an
d 

at
 k

ey
 s

ta
ge

s 
in

th
e 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t i
nv

es
tig

at
io

n

Pa
ris

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

nt
ac

t E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
Te

am
 fo

r m
ee

tin
g

Pr
in

ci
pa

l E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r c

on
ta

ct
s 

Pa
ris

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 a
rra

ng
e 

a 
su

ita
bl

e 
tim

e 
fo

r m
ee

tin
g

Pr
in

ci
pa

l E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r a

tte
nd

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t c
as

es
 w

ith
in

 a
re

a

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- 
Fl

ow
ch

ar
ts

Page 41



28

Would the Planning
Department welcome a

Retrospective
application?

Has a breach of 
planning occurred?

Concern is not a planning matter Concern is permitted development/not 
development

Concern is passed to relevant Council 
or External department who would be 

able to investigate further

Complainant is advised

Case is recommended for closure

Landowner informed of matter and 
recommended to submit application 

for lawful development certificate

Breach has occurred outside of 
enforcement time limit

Are remedial works 
required to reduce the 

harm?

Is it expedient to issue 
a notice?

Is the landowner willing 
to remedy breach in 

first instance?

Yes No

Landowner instructed with required 
actions

Enforcement case monitored 

Planning application requested

Planning application validated by 
Planning Department

Is the harm of the 
breach high?

Enforcement case recommended for 
closure whilst awaiting planning 

decision

Complainant is advised

Enterprise Long Term Monitoring 
triggered

Enforcement case to be monitored 
whilst awaiting planning decision

Has the application 
been approved?

New enforcement case raised and 
landowner contacted

Complainant is advised of 
recommendation to close case

Case is recommended for closure

Landowner instructed with required 
actions

Enforcement case monitored 

Enforcement Notice issued

Legal services consulted for advice on 
issuing an Enforcement Notice

Non-expedient report to be written

Complainant is advised

Case is recommended for closure

Complainant, Parish and Ward 
members are advised

Complainant is advised

Complainant is advised

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Stage 2: Detailed Enforcement Officer 
Investigation

Complainant is advised

Case reviewed with Principal 
Enforcement Officer and Planning 

Department Consulted

Complainant is advised

Case reviewed with Principal 
Enforcement Officer

Enforcement
case reviewed: Has the 

breach been
remedied?

Yes No

Enforcement case 
reviewed: Is a new 

case required?

Yes No

Complainant is advised of 
recommendation to close case

Case is recommended for closure

Contact points:semi- automated

Decisions 

Action undertaken

Contact points: automated

Key

Enforcement Notice is recorded on 
Notice Register

Website is updated with Notice 
information

Appendix 3 - Flowcharts

Page 42



29

Appendix 3 - Flowcharts

Case is raised and Parish Council is 
sent an acknowledgement
 letter with case reference

Parish Council reports complaint to 
Enforcement Team

Has enough 
information been 

submitted?

Yes No

Parish Council asked for further 
information

Has enough 
information been 

submitted?

Parish Council advised that
 investigation may not be taken

any further

Initial
assessment: Has a 
breach of planning 

happened?

Yes No

Concern is not a planning matter Concern is permitted development/not 
development

Would another 
department be able to 

help?

Parish Council is advised

Case is recommended for closure

Case is reviewed by Principal 
Enforcement Officer to assess

 level of harm, priority and
next steps

Parish Council is advised

Unclear

Case put into queue for site visit or 
other actionDirect allocation to officer

Is the breach of high 
harm?

Enforcement officer to determine 
investigation strategy and

conduct site visit

Case to be picked up by next
available officer

Yes No

Yes No

Parish Reported Complaint

Contact points: semi-automated

Decisions 

Action undertaken

Contact points: automated

Key

Local Resident reports concerns to 
Parish Council

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- 
Fl

ow
ch

ar
ts

Page 43



30

EN
D

 T
O

 E
N

D
 P

R
O

C
ES

S
Th

is
 fl

ow
ch

ar
t s

et
s 

ou
t a

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
en

d 
to

 
en

d 
pr

oc
es

s 
fro

m
 w

he
n 

an
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t c

om
pl

ai
nt

 is
 

re
ce

iv
ed

. E
m

be
dd

ed
 in

 th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 
m

ax
im

is
e 

di
gi

ta
l a

nd
 a

ut
om

at
ed

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

an
d 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l c

on
ta

ct
 p

oi
nt

s 
w

ith
 in

te
re

st
ed

 th
ird

 p
ar

tie
s 

to
 

en
ga

ge
 e

le
ct

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ai
na

nt
s.

  

Br
ea

ch
 h

as
 o

cc
ur

re
do

ut
si

de
 

of
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

tim
e 

lim
it

Pe
rm

itt
ed

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

no
t

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
ad

vi
se

d 
ca

se
 c

lo
su

re

N
O

Y
ES

 / 
U

N
C

LE
A

R

C
on

ce
rn

 is
 n

ot
 a

pl
an

ni
ng

 m
at

te
r 

an
d

co
m

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
 a

dv
is

ed
an

ot
he

r 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

he
lp

C
as

e 
is

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 b

y
Pr

in
ci

pa
l t

o 
as

se
ss

 le
ve

l o
f 

ha
rm

,p
rio

rit
y 

an
d

ne
xt

 s
te

ps

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
ad

vi
se

d
C

as
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d
co

nd
uc

t 
si

te
 v

is
it

Y
ES

H
as

 a
 b

re
ac

h 
of

pl
an

ni
ng

ha
pp

en
ed

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Re
qu

es
te

d
ca

se
 r

ai
se

d 
co

m
pl

ai
na

nt
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

ed

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 is

su
bm

itt
ed

to
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t

La
nd

ow
ne

r 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

w
ith

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ac

tio
ns

an
d 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

is
m

on
ito

re
rd

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
ad

vi
se

d 
ca

se
 c

lo
su

re

H
as

 a
 b

re
ac

h 
of

pl
an

ni
ng

ha
pp

en
ed

Y
ES

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

is
su

bm
itt

ed
 a

nd
 t

he
co

m
pl

ai
na

nt
 is

 a
dv

is
ed

.
C

as
e 

C
lo

se
d

Le
ga

l s
er

vi
ce

s
co

ns
ul

te
d 

fo
r 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
is

su
in

g 
an

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t
N

ot
ic

e

Is
 it

 e
xp

ed
ie

nt
 t

o
is

su
e 

a 
no

tic
e?

N
O

Y
ES

N
on

 e
xp

ed
ie

nt
re

po
rt

 is
 w

rit
te

n

En
fo

rc
em

en
t

N
ot

ic
e 

is
su

ed

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
 a

dv
is

ed
 

an
d 

ca
se

 is
 c

lo
se

d

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

, P
ar

is
h 

an
d 

W
ar

d 
m

em
be

rs
 

ar
e 

ad
vi

se
d

En
fo

rc
em

en
t

N
ot

ic
e 

is
 r

ec
or

de
d

on
 N

ot
ic

e 
Re

gi
st

er

K
EY C

on
ta

ct
 p

oi
nt

s:
 

se
m

i a
ut

om
at

ed

C
on

ta
ct

 p
oi

nt
s:

 
au

to
m

at
ed

D
ec

is
io

ns

A
ct

io
n 

un
de

rt
ak

en

PR
O

C
ES

S 
ST

A
R

TS
Y

ES Y
ES

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- 
Fl

ow
ch

ar
t 

En
d 

to
 E

nd
 P

ro
ce

ss

Page 44



31

Upper Meon Valley Ward

Wonston & Micheldever Ward

Alresford & Itchen Valley Ward

Central Meon Valley Ward

Southwick & Wickham Ward

Bishop's Waltham Ward

Denmead Ward

-

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024  
OS AC0000809217. You are permitted to use
this data solely to enable you to respond to, or 
interact with, the organisation that provided 
you with the data. You are not permitted to 
copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this
data to third parties in any form.

Drawn: CSHI
Dept: IT

1:160,000Scale:
28/03/2024Date: Winchester District Ward Map

St. Michael Ward

St. Paul Ward

St. Bartholomew Ward

St. Barnabas Ward

St. Luke Ward

Colden 
Common

& Twyford 
Ward

Badger Farm &
Oliver's Battery Ward

Whiteley & 
Shedfield 

Ward

The Worthys 
Ward

Winchester

Winchester

South Downs National Park

Winchester District Boundary

Winchester District Ward Boundary

Appendix 4

To find your Parish Council:

https://
democracy.winchester.gov.uk/
mgParishCouncilDetails.aspx?

bcr=1

A
pp

en
di

x 
4 

- 
M

ap
s

Page 45



32

We would like to give thanks and appreciation to the 
following Parish Councils and members for their involvement 
in the review of the Local Enforcement Plan:

•	 Councillor Jackie Porter, Cabinet Member for Place and Local Plan

•	 Councillor Loraine Rappe, Wickham Parish Council Member

•	 Councillor Sue Wood, Sparsholt Parish Council Chair

•	 Councillor Eric Bodger, Curdridge Parish Council Member

•	 Councillor Maggie Hill, Colden Common Parish Council Member

•	 Councillor Paula Langford-Smith, Parish Councillor for Denmead

•	 Councillor Kevin Andreoli, Denmead Parish Council Member

•	 Councillor Francesca Byrne, Shedfield Parish Council

•	 Councillor Margaret Jones, Shedfield Parish Council

•	 Ailsa Duckworth, Clerk - Shedfield Parish Council

•	 Councillor Carolyne Trew, Boarhunt Parish Council

•	 Councillor Timothy Hunt, Compton and Shawford Parish Council Member

•	 Councillor John Godbold, Badger Farm Parish Council 

•	 Councillor Rona Blundell, Olivers Battery Parish Council

•	 Brendan Gibbs, Clerk - Olivers Battery Parish Council

•	 Councillor Ian Herring, Otterbourne Parish Council Member

Page 46



33

Page 47



Page 48


	Agenda
	4 Local Enforcement Plan - 2025 (DD86)
	DD86 - Appendix 1 - Local Enforcement Plan 2025


